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COMMANDER’S LOG 
In the 2023 MOWW National Convention in Annapolis, MD, one of the major events was the adoption of a new 2023-2028 Strategic Plan.  In six previous newsletters, each of the six strategic goals in the plan have been detailed.  These strategic goals are listed at the end of this newsletter.   
In January, the MOWW leadership approved Annex A -2023-2028 Strategic Plan Implementation Plan.  A copy will be provided as a separate attachment.  Annex B (Metrix) will be approved soon.  It will define the roadmap for the executing, evaluating, and adjusting the Strategic Plan.  These two annexes will provide guidance to all levels from national down to chapter as to how to implement the plan.   Please review these documents and assist this chapter in implementing them.
The 2024 National Convention is scheduled for 7-10 August in Valley Forge, PA.  Information about the schedule and the tours is in the March-April Officer Review and on the MOWW website.  The registration form is an online form on the MOWW website. Hotel information is also on the website.   

Please review the articles about the possible name change for the Order on pages 16-18 in the January-February 2024 issue of the Officer Review.  This issue will be voted on in the 2024 National Meeting.  Please let me know your thoughts on this important issue.  
Another important issue to be discussed is including enlisted personnel as eligible to be regular companions.  Also let me know your thoughts on this issue

Another CINC Town Hall Webinar was held on 9 April 2024 5:00 pm to 6:30 pm Mountain Time.  A link to the recording will be available soon.
Don’t forget to contribute to the CINC’s solicitation.  It is very helpful in supporting the many activities that are supported from the national headquarters. 

The MOWW Policy Manual, dated 5 January 2024 has been posted to the moww.org website.
  THIS MONTH’S SPEAKER 
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This month’s speaker will be Representative Christine Chandler.  Representative Chandler is a long-time resident of Los Alamos County who is serving in the New Mexico House of Representatives, District 43 (Los Alamos, Sandoval and Santa Fe).   Her legislative committee assignments include House Taxation & Revenue and Judiciary.
Prior to her election to the New Mexico House, Rep. Chandler had been a two term Los Alamos County Councilor and has worked on numerous local civic boards and commissions.  Before her retirement, she was a Los Alamos National Laboratory lawyer and group leader, having managed the Litigation Group in Office of Laboratory Counsel.   Rep. Chandler has law degrees from Boston College and Georgetown University Law Schools.
Representative Chandler will give an overview of the 2024 legislative sessions.  She will highlight the major pieces of legislation that prevailed in both chambers as well as some that didn’t.  Rep. Chandler will offer personal observations about working with the current administration as well as House/Senate dynamics. 

MEETING DETAILS

This month’s meeting will be on Tuesday April 16th.  We will meet in the Los Alamos Research Park building room 203A.  The building is labelled Hot Rocks Café in the map.  The meeting will begin with a social period at 6:00 PM followed by a brief business meeting at 6;30 PM.  There may be a presentation starting at about 7:15 PM. 
The Military Order of the World Wars meetings are open to all interested people for dinner and program with RSVP, or the program only at no cost. .  The cost for dinner is $25.  Please call Robert Hull 1-505-328-1502 for reservations.  A reservation is a commitment to pay.  The dinner menu is chicken-fried steak with appropriate sides.

The meeting will be a hybrid session including Zoom online.  Zoom session will start at about 6:00 PM.  Zoom details will be in the reminder email several days before the meeting.
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LAST MONTH: SPEAKER         
The speaker at our March19th dinner was Dr. Glen McDuff who spoke on 

Project Alberta, Combat Use of the Atomic Bombs

This is Project Alberta. Now for those who don't know about Alberta, it was the combat mission to use the atomic bomb as part of the Manhattan Project.  The next slide had several pictures.  Up in the corner, we have a base pass for the Alberta site on Tinian. We're talking about that.  We've got some of the scientists.  This is Marty Waldman, Louie Alvarez, Robert Serber, Paul Tibbetts. This is Bill Penny. He's the Brit.  He's basically the British Oppenheimer. He's the father of their atomic bomb. This is Leon Smith up here in the corner.  Leon was there. He was an electronic test officer. We'll see him later a lot.  A lot of these pictures are from Leon. 

The way this started, Project Alberta essentially started before Los Alamos started. In early 1943, they had already determined they're going to build a large atomic bomb, so they need a plane, and they started practicing dropping them.  It wasn't officially started, but the process to deliver a bomb in combat started in actually the spring of 43. By June of 43, they realized we don't have any airplanes to carry huge atomic bombs. So we started looking at all the different aircraft.  Obviously, they started dropping the Finland bomb, our first gun weapon, in Dahlgren, Virginia. In the next month, John von Neumann suggested fast implosion, which they had not really thought about that much, because they chose a gun as the prime candidate for the atomic bomb because it's easy. We had been building guns in America since the Revolutionary War, and it's something we could do.
Well, after the bombing survey, aircraft survey, they determined that only plane available in World War II to carry an atomic bomb was the British Lancaster. And evidently, it was decided that we're not going to carry an American atomic bomb on a British airplane. So they decided to modify the B-29 in October of 43, and they started a program to modify a certain B-29.  They started still dropping in 1944. By September, the first new B-29 had been completed as part of the Silverplate Project. 

In March of 45, they finally officially started Project Alberta.  From October, 1944 through the end of the war, most of the testing was done at Windover, Utah. We're going to say a lot about Windover. Where is Windover located relative to any other Utah city?  It's just west of Salt Lake, near the Nevada border. So shortly, in March of 45, they officially started Project Alberta. Captain Deke Parsons was the head of that.  Norm Ramsey was on a kind of his parallel. One of the things that General Groves did in every aspect of the Manhattan Project, he had a spare for everything. Every part had a spare part.  Every component had a spare component. Every person had a spare person. So if Deke Parsons died, Norm Ramsey would step right in and take over without any regular primary.  Commander Burch, notice, he's a Commander. That showed up later in the program. He was the head of the gun program.  Ken Bainbridge was implosion. Bob Brode was in charge of fusing and firing. And then George Galloway was the general engineer of the atomic bombs for Project A. 

Now Project Alberta involved thousands of people all over the United States, and it basically ran for about two years. So some of the code words you will see is Wendover. It was referred to as W47.  Inyokern was called Camel.  Pumpkins were manufactured in Inyokern.  
Inyokern is like halfway between Inyo and Kern, California, so they cleverly named it Inyokern because it's halfway between the two. Mare Island was a storage area for atomic bombs.  Port Chicago, also in California, was a storage area. Washington, D.C., of course, Hawaii was a stop-off place for a lot of the work. Santa Fe was in charge of our stuff here.  
They were in charge of lots of atomic bombs. San Francisco was in charge of the storage area and the bay area.  Iwo Jima, which was a very important part of Alberta, was called Morgue and later Curfew.  They changed the name. We'll see why Iwo Jima was important. Guam was a backup to the main site just in case Tinian was not moved up.  They were back up and moved to Portland. Then, of course, we have Los Alamos, the Site Y. Hanford, where the plutonium comes from, was Site X. Tinian was called Destination.  Really, the two main players here are W-47 and Destination, and then hundreds of others. 

What did we do in Site Y? Los Alamos. We had the three divisions that were really involved.
G, the gadget division. G and X were responsible to make sure the bomb was going to explode. That was our main job, something that's going to blow up.  We had nothing to do with arming or fusing. We didn't have anything to do with the case or the aircraft, the handling, the loading, or protection of enemy attack.  That was our job. 

What Wendover did is practically everything else. Their primary mission was testing and ballistic deployment development, developing the drop table, flight table, how the bomb was going to fly.  They chose Wendover for two main reasons. One, it had a railroad because these bombs were heavy, and they were going to get a hundreds of these bombs. So they needed a railroad.  It's in the middle of nowhere. In fact, our USO chair, Bob Hope, said they should change the name to Leftover from Wendover. It was home of the 509 and the 393rd bombardment group.  Almost all the army did fusing development with them. All the handling, the shipping, the loading. It was about everything to make the bomb usable.  It was done at Wendover. There was also the takeoff point for all the bombing practice. Most of the targets were in the Salton Sea down in California or in the China Lake area.
This is what Project Alberta was appeared for. We took the science fair project over the top and turned it into an actual usable bomb. Here's Trinity, the gadget, turning the Fat Man, and actually Little Boy turned into Little Boy.  The upper picture is Little Boy. That's the bomb that actually is in the lower picture being tested at Los Alamos. So anyway, that's the job.  Take the science fair project and make it a usable weapon. 

This is Admiral Ashworth. He's going to talk a little bit about some of the Fat Man problems. “The design of the Fat Man bomb was really pretty difficult to do. Somehow you had to make this into a ballistic shape that would produce reproducible flight and from which you could get your ballistic table information to work on your bomb site.  So it's almost like a streamlined brick. It's one of the worst things you can happen. Test bombs resembling fat man are called pumpkins.  They're loaded with conventional explosives and drug-tested in the California desert. Early models tumble badly and missed the target by miles. Finally, a new design with a box-shaped tail is tried.  It worked to the surprise of the cameraman on the ground. A man named Berlin Brixner was some reason unable to see the whole bombing range at the time the group scattered them over. So he said, well, they've been missing by so much that the safest place would be the bullseye of the target.  That's where he went. This bomb came down and headed right towards the bullseye.  Fortunately he had time to spot it and move out of the way”.  The photographer is Berlin Brixner. He forgot anything. The early days, if he would be on the outskirts of the bombing range, he would never see the bomb.  It would be so far away. 

They code named the building of the B-29s with Silverplate. This gave you carte blanche if you had Silverplate orders in the military.  No one knew what it was. It's one of the few times Leon Smith was flying out of Omaha.  One of the Silverplate corporals was late to the plane.  He got to the plane.  He had to get on the plane and to go to Salt Lake.  He had to get there and there's no room on the plane.  He had Silverplate orders.  They kicked a full bird colonel off the plane and put a corporal on it.  The colonel was quite perturbed at this.  I guess the MP convinced the colonel that he wasn't that perturbed.
There were about 1,000 people at Wendover, but there was only about four or five people who knew what was really going on. That was Colonel Tibbetts, the class of the security guy, Lieutenant Colonel Bainey, and the three electronic test officers. The military people were not allowed to leave the base.  You would fly in, and you would fly out.  You did not leave. Civilians could walk across the road to Nevada and go to the restaurant, which was horrible, evidently.  So nobody went anyway. 

 Security was exceedingly tight. Leon told us one story that whenever they went to the Salton Sea, they flew to the Salton Sea.  They're going to do a practice run the next day.  Two of the soldiers decided back here, we're going to sneak over to Tijuana tonight and come back.  They won't catch us. So he laughed.  Leon said that's the last we ever saw of them.  It was very clear. If you said the word atomic, you would be in Alaska building sidewalks. There you would be.  Security would exceedingly, exceedingly spread. 

These are the three electronic test officers. From left to right is Dick Jeppsen, Phil Barnes, and Leon Smith.  These are the guys who armed the weapons for the combat mission. They're also the guys who designed the arming, firing and fusing of the first atomic bombs. Dick Jepsen flew Hiroshima, Phil Barnes flew Nagasaki, and Leon sat in the Iwo Jima for both missions.  I find he sat in Iwo Jima because he drew the shorter straw. That's what he drew. Fortunately, Leon also dropped our third bomb on Crossroads Able.  He was the electronic officer.  Anyway, what did they do? Well, they did the radars. They converted the radars.  They tuned the radars for the weapon. They installed the radars. 

They designed and built the clock box.  The clock box performs all the timing functions in the weapon. The bombs, when they would be released, the first thing they added because of the tumbling issue was a 15-second safe separation timer. It was the first time they had a safe separation timer added to a bomb.  That's because the bomb is radar triggered. If the radar, for some accident, had turned on, and the bomb tumbled, and saw the airplane, it would detonate.  So the first thing they did was wait 15 seconds before anything happened. Then they would apply power for the first set of barrel switches. When the bomb had dropped to 12,000 feet, they would apply power to the radars.  When it went to 8,000 feet, they would connect radars to an RV system. As it got lower and lower, more and more functions were connected, until at 5,000 feet, it's ready to go.  Now, if the bomb is looking for the ground, they're waiting until they've got to about 1,800 feet, and it is going to blow. 

They did all the testing. Here is the timer went to the RV plugs, that's the little green and red plugs you'll see on the top, that is Fat Man and Little Boy. They would do all, they did all this development, and they checked all this over and over.  They ran on batteries, lead-acid batteries. The Little Boy could run quite a while. It could run several hours on batteries.  Fat Man could only run about 15 minutes before its ran batteries down. It always had to stay on, had to connect the core to ship power, or aircraft power, during flying. 

Barrel switches were the standard Boeing aircraft.  They would be set to do either open or close at different altitudes depending upon what functions they wanted. The famous test box Leon Smith designed would be hooked to the weapon, to the bomb, and you could check every function of the weapon up to and actually firing the weapon, simulating the fire. On the way, Fat Man was actually fired three times on the way to the target.  They really worried it wasn't going to work.  This will check batteries, radars, fair bit of pressure set, everything. It could do both Fat Man and a Little Boy. 

At Wendover, they did a lot of just testing.  They did drop testing, shock testing, heat testing to find out how can we really handle these things. One of the things they learned is, the original case is, if they got hit by any aircraft, they would puncture it and set off the high explosive.  This may have been an issue. They thought we're getting lots of these cases. In fact, records we have show they received 486 steel cases from Consolidated Steel Western, Pipe, and Centerline in Detroit.  These steel cases could not protect against antiaircraft fire, or even 50 caliber. So, they ordered special combat cases and combat plates for Fat Man and Little Boy made out of armor plate, which came back to bite them later on.  The armor plate would protect the bombs against any aircraft fire, and only Wendover got these cases.
They worked on this right up to the last.  If you're talking about cutting things close, the first actual full test of a Fat Man bomb, I mean everything, radar, high explosive, everything but fissile material was on August 4th, 1945. The first test drop on Tinian of a full complete Fat Man weapon was on August 8th.  The next day, they dropped a Fat Man on Nagasaki.  This is like cutting it to the last four days to be sure this was going to work. It was one of those things that half the scientists said it was going to work, half said it wasn't.  The physics of atomic bombs kind of makes it that way.  It's either going to work or not going to work at all. So you've got about a 50-50 chance. It's either a little poop or it's going to be a mushroom cloud.
Going to the aircraft, they were very important to this.  They had a huge part to play.  We started looking at pressurized bombers back in the 30s to get bombers higher altitude and out of the range of anti-aircraft fire.  In mid-1940, they let the contract to develop B-29s. They were built all over, in Washington, Kansas, and Omaha.  The Silverplate were a special group of B-29s that they had stripped of everything not necessary except to do the atomic bomb missions. They took out all the guns. They took out most of the plumbing for the fuel tanks.  They had two special fuel tanks, but they knocked 7,000 pounds off the aircraft. They took out seats.  They took out staves. They made special bomb bays. They had tighter turning radius, mainly because of gliders.  They also had variable pitch propellers. Normal B-29s had fixed propellers. They could only go forward.  The Silverplate actually had reverse capability.  They only had one gun, the tail gun. The other turrets had been removed.  It came back to actually save them in the end. 

 Destination was Tinian Island, an island in the Northern Marianas. There was chosen for a couple of reasons.  One, it's far enough away from Japan, you don't have to worry about being attacked. Two, it had the world's largest air base already there for all the B-29s. During Project Alberta, they were telling how many Fat Man cases were there.  They estimated somewhere between 60 and 80 different Fat Man cases. There were 60 Little Boys.  On August 1, 1945, there were three weaponized Fat Man cases and three weaponized Litte Boy cases.  The rest are all just practice.  We'll see a bunch of that. 

Iwo Jima was a backup landing field.  It's halfway between Tinian and Tokyo.  If you look on where Saipan is, down here at the bottom, Saipan and Tinian, if you follow this curve of islands, which made it very, very easy for the navigator who talked too much, or a Dutch navigator, once in a while, say anybody can fly from Tinian to Japan, if it's clear. Say, you don't even have to have a compass.  You just look for the next island, and you just follow this curve all the way to Japan. Where on Iwo Jima, they put a backup secondary base with loading pits, handling equipment in case an airplane on the way to Japan on a bombing mission had a problem they could land, they would offload the atomic bomb, load it on a new airplane.  For both missions, there were two warplanes stationed on Iwo Jima and backup aircraft. That's where Leon Smith was. He was the backup electronic test officer on Iwo Jima.
Now Tinian is a little kind of a short little island. The airfield is in the north. The harbor is kind of midway on the west side of the island.  You can't approach the island. There's a coral island. There's no beaches anywhere.   There's a couple little short ones, but the only deep water access is down here in the harbor, and that's where the main warehouses were.  So all in the north, there's four huge runways. Each one was over two miles long, and then there was plenty of parking for all the B-29s.  Here's a picture. You can see the four runways. On the right-hand side is the regular air base.  I think there's about 600 B-29s at this point, and up in the far left side is the Project Alberta. These are just normal B-29s lined up.  Leon said they would be lined up row after row after row of B-29s. You can tell these are normal B-29s because they have gun turrets. Here's kind of looking up at a hidden postcard from World War II of Tinian air base.
Looking in from the north, this is the north end of it, right here is Project Alberta. They took this little corner off of the north side. These three buildings are the bomb assembly buildings. They have one for Little Boy, one for Fat Man, and one for pumpkins.  That's the loading pits. The bombers were too low to the ground to get the bomb under it, sSo they had to raise the bomb up into the bomb.  This is where the Silverplates would park. If they weren't dispersed somewhere else. We'll get to that in a second.  This is basically Project Alberta. The rest of it, the rest of the thousands of aircraft out of the B-29s. 

None of the 509th planes were marked with unit designators of the 509th.  They randomly changed. They were marked with designators of a bunch of new aircraft that were on the island. So it would be the 6th, the 497th, 494th, 444th and 11th.  They never really knew who put an airplane. You were going to be marked. Leon said one time, they did a flight test, came back, went to bed, got up the next morning, got up to do another flight test.  They said they were playing it, totally been repainted. They said it went from a weather aircraft to a surveillance aircraft over night.  They would erase, they would take the strip of paint off the tail and repaint the tail part. This was to keep the fact that nobody knew what these planes really were. But after the bombing missions, because they were not allowed to paint the planes, then they had to part nose art.  In fact, the guy who did all the nose art for all these planes lived in Albuquerque until 54 years ago. He painted all of them. So after the war, and you may notice, these are soldiers, they had been away home for years. In fact, some of these guys had not seen a human for a year because Alberta people were kind of secluded. So you get an emphasis on females and toilet humor.
Not that the soldiers would do that. But here's some of the Silverplate bombers. They have Some Pumpkins with reference to dropping pumpkin bombs, I'm sure. We have Straight Flush. Flushing the Japanese Down the Toilet, Strange Cargo. Also a lot of references to secrecy because none of these crews knew what they were doing.  None of them knew what the exact mission was. No one told them that they were going to drop an atomic bomb.  Top Secret was a great name.

This is the Great Artiste.  It was a diagnostic plane, and it the only plane that flew on both atomic bomb missions.  It dropped diagnostic packages to measure the yield of the blasts.  Full House is an out house full of army officers probably.   Next Objective.  There was a lot of serious talk about what were we going to do when we get home.   The first objective is to find a girlfriend.  Necessary Evil.  Up and Atom now that they know it was atom now that the secret is out.  Big Stink.  Bocks Car for Captain Bock.  It shows a chain from Salt Lake to Nagasaki.  How did they know it was Nagasaki?  It was because it was painted after the bombing.  That was because Kokura was fogged in. Of course, there is Enola Gay with the arrow.  Sometimes it was a backwards R.  It changed every day or two.      
They had six of these planes called the Green Hornet.  I think it was a C-147.  They used these as taxis.  They flew to Hawaii and San Francisco.  They ferried people and bomb components.  They were nice aircraft.
Los Alamos had four areas these Quonset huts.  They were core assembly, arming/fusing, firing, and yield measurement.  That was the Los Alamos part.  The key personnel included Officer in Charge USN Capt. Deke Parsons.  The Technical Director was Norman Ramsey.  The backup officer, Operations Officer, was Cdr. Ashworth.  You saw Admiral Ashworth in the first video. He was second in command and filled the duties as directed by Parsons.  Then we had the Pit Team of Philip Morrison and Charles Baker.   The Fat Man Team was Roger Warner, and the Little Boy Team was Lt. Cdr. Francis Birch, another Navy officer.  The Fusing Team was Edward Doll.  This is kind of important. Fusing Team was Ed Doll, The Detonator Team, was Lt. Cdr. Ed Stevenson. The Yield Measurement Team leader was Luis Alverez, and then we had Will Penny, the Brit, and Robert Serber, who was just a scientist.  We had Bill Lawrence, who was the embedded press guy from the New York Times. He was with them the entire time, writing the history of all things. 

Here's a Pit Assembly team in their Quonset hut.  They're the ones who assembled the core of the Fat Man bomb. The yield measurement was in the backside of their Quonset hut, Louie Alvarez, Harold Agnew, Larry Johnson, and Bernie Waldman, and that's the blast gauge in front of them.  These were dropped simultaneously with the atomic bombs, and would measure the shock, thus the yield of the two bombs. They gave you some idea of what the yield was when they blew up Hiroshima and Nagasaki. The yield measurements were done with FM radios and old scopes and gun cameras.  They would be loaded on the Great Artiste, and when the bombs were released, the two lucky people who drew straws to go on that mission, would listen to their frequency from their blast gauge and keep it in tune.  When the blast hit the gauge, it would be recorded on the 16-millimeter gun camera on which it would be mounted. 

The gun cameras were mounted in the nose of aircraft to take films of them shooting at the thing.  A lot of the film you see in World War II with guns shooting at something, that was taken with one of these Kodak 16-millimeter gun cameras. 

Now, the strange thing, the actual core of Fat Man, was not kept in the core assembly building. It was kept in the back of the diagnostic building.  It would sit on the shelf, you see the little cover here, and there was a private that lived with this core all the time.  You don't get near the core. The private said “you get near me, I'll shoot you.”  My orders.  Well they said, we got to be friends, and we gave them help, and we gave them a Coke. They said, well, we're going to get a picture holding the Fat Man's core in the tank.  He said, no, you can't do that. And they finally told you, well, if I hold it, you can hold it too. So, that's why you see a picture of Louis Alvarez and Private, and Harold Agnew and Private.   He'd always have one finger on them. I think since they were building an atomic bomb, he found it okay if they touched the core. Anyway, once they used it, the core case was empty, and they said the Army would have left the case.   Now we can take it and go get our picture with it all by ourselves. So, of course, the whole assembly team had to take their picture holding the core case. But there's nothing in it.
Bill Lawrence, the reporter at the New York Times, he wrote a little book, “The Story of the Atomic Bomb”. He is also the guy who coined the term atomic age. The first time showing up is in his writing.
They had a laundromat on Tinian, a wind-powered laundromat. They were green back then. The wind was blowing, this little plunger was washing.   They also had the top-secret submarine. Two soldiers somewhere on the base took two drop tanks, cut some holes in it, and they mounted this little one-cylinder agent to it with a propeller. And they made this little motorboat thing.  Leon said they would see it fly sailing around down there. Well, somebody reported it, and Army intelligence showed up that somebody thinks there's a top-secret Japanese spy stuff around Tinian.  They stayed for several days they were investigating the top-secret Japanese spy stuff.  Finally, somebody told him it's Boba and Frank's motorboat they built. But that was the top-secret Japanese spy stuff. 

Bomb assembly was done in bomb assembly buildings.  They were just made by the CBs painted Navy Green.  All three buildings were exactly the same.  Little Boy building.  Here's Little Boy being checked out.  See all the pull-out wires and the umbilical cords over to the test box. Further checking and checking and checking one more time just to be sure Little Boy's is going to function correctly.  They tested Fat Man.  This is not Fat Man. This is a test unit.  This soldier is checking the radar.  Fat Man's also hooked to the test box. 

I get asked a lot, when I was doing this, one of the things you're always going to ask me, what's supposed to bumble bee paint job on Fat Man?  People always ask me, why is Little Boy green?  Well, it's Navy Green because Commander Birch is navy and he's not going to paint it Army Green. So they painted it Navy Green.  Fat Man was different. Fat Man had some issues.  Little Boy ran on low voltage.  He ran on two Jeep batteries. Fat Man had high voltage for the detonating system and had high voltage cables.  The problem is that if you carry something to 30,000 feet, you lose all high voltage insulation and integrity.  They were afraid if they got Fat Man at 30,000 feet, and it's on, it may arc, or it may not work, or may have a breakdown. Also, at 30,000 feet, it's cold.   It's an unheated bomb bay, and if they saw that very long, Fat Man is going to get ice cold. Well, if you take something ice cold, and drop it into 100 degree, 100 percent humidity, you get condensation, and a lot of condensation.  If you get water in all this fancy electronics of Fat Man, it's kind of like dropping your cell phone into toilet.  It's not going to work.  They worried about this. 

The Fat Man case does not see it.  It's just too big. In fact, on the main seam around his gird, you can look right through the crack and see the bomb.  What they did started by taping all the seams.  They started taping all the seams with gunner's tape.  With gunner's tape, AKA duct tape.  So they taped the seam.  They painted up a bunch of the scratches.  Notice all the care that they're using this wallpaper brush to paint Fat Man. They also had to repaint the nose because when they were assembling Fat Man, they had a couple of issues with rewiring. They took it apart. They put it back together. They tightened it all up. The nose did not go back on.  Some of the holes didn't line up.  They tried to drill it out with a hand drill.   It's armor plate.  They quickly gave up on that endeavor, and Harlow rested.  This is not going to work. So they went all the way down to the docks, down to the warehouse, and found a new nose cone, which was not armor plate.  They could bring it back, redrill it, and they put it on.  They thought, it'd probably be okay. But it wasn't the same color. So they painted it.  That's what he's doing. He's painting the nose.  Once you put tape on the seam, they would spray over the tape with Glyptal.  It's a red-colored paint.   Glyptal is kind of a really good coating paint, gas-resistant, oil-resistant.  It can be used as an adhesive.  The military used gallons of this stuff.  It's still available today.  So he would paint all this over the tape, and this would seal the big cracks.  If you put tape on a curve, it would bunch up, they wanted to seal all that. Glyptal. You could buy it today.  

Then, to seal up all the little bitty holes, they used Pliobond.  Pliobond is kind of like rubber cement and contact cement.  It's just a really good cement.  It's been around. It's still available today.  But Pliobond is clear because it's like rubber cement, and they couldn't see where it was spraying on top of the Glyptal.  Somebody at Wendover thought, let's just pour some ink in it. We got lots of India ink for the copy machine and our pens.  That's really weird, how some of these work, some don't.  They picked ink and then they sprayed all over the red to be sure that they got all the little bitty holes because Pliobond will never dry it if they stick to the whole life.  That's where the red and the black stripes come from. It's the Pliobond and the Glyptal. 

There's Fat Man and just about being finished.  They were putting the finishing touching on it.  While they were letting the paint dry, someone who wasn't Harlow Russ painted the Fat Man logo on the nose. Now if you look at a lot of the pictures you'll see in the uniform, the Fat Man assembly team had a logo on top.  The Pit assembly team had their logo and they were painted on their uniform. There is no Little Boy logo because Little Boy team was Lieutenant Commander Birch, and if you painted something on your uniform, you were out of uniform.  If you had a civilian in charge, they don't care what you painted on your uniform. That's why you'll see Fat Man logo and Little Boy logo. 

They wrote a lot of messages on Fat Man because there's a lot of surface area on it.  Leon Smith, who was actually born in China, his parents were missionaries. His message was: To Japan, from all my Chinese friends. So they wrote all over it.  A hundred messages written on Fat Man. When did they take those pictures? These were right before we dropped it. This was on the final assembly, the aft fin assembly. Here you can see the Fat Man logo on the back of the assembly and on the front of the bottom. While they were letting it drive, since they had problems with wiring, had problems with the nose, they had wired it wrong, had to take it apart and re-fix it.  They wrote their team logo, J-A-N-C-F-U.  You might know what snafu is, right? Well, this is joint Army, Navy, civilian foul up.  This bomb was such a pain. but we got it done. We had to write something obnoxious on it because it was a miserable place to be. 

They never told about the bombing.  Basically, the day before the bombing mission, they told the entire 509 Corps what they were doing. They showed them a film of Trinity, and told them that they had a bomb that would destroy a city.   They had been practicing. These are practice drops on Japan. They did 18 inside of them.   They did a dozen drops of pumpkins, the big Fat Man practice bomb, before they dropped the Little Boy.  Those were just conventional explosives? Conventional explosives.  Some were just dropped.  Sometimes they just dropped a big drop on them. They were just practicing. The pumpkins had real problems for them, and they did a lot of practice.  Little Boy had no problem with hitting the target whatsoever. So they did 12 missions. They did the Hiroshima mission.  They did a couple more. They did Nagasaki, and then just to be really cruel, they did two more pumpkins after Nagasaki.  Which I'm sure was a real thrill to somebody in Nagoya after Hiroshima. Seen one big silver airplane flying over, a big yellow bomb falling out of it. Like really, kind of a really ruined their day.  They did a lot. 

These are some pumpkins. There were pumpkins everywhere.   There were pumpkins all over the place. They were practicing dropping, and this is the harbor area.  That means a lot of people on Tinian had seen pumpkins, just not knowing what they were. They just thought it was a big bomb. There's a thousand bombers on Tinian so nobody thought different.
This is a map of where we dropped pumpkins. We dropped them all over Southern Japan. They did drop leaflets to tell people to get out of the city.  As Harry said, a rain of ruin is about to come from the sky. Iwo Jima is a big flat island with a mountain on one end. The other end has kind of a mesa.   When CBs ground it all flat, they built two runways, and on the other end, they came in and they put in two loading pits. They put in parking areas for B-29.  The runway was too short for normal B-29s.  They said somebody brought this up once. How did they put B-29s on these? They were shipped off to Antarctica. You don't ask questions.
Here's the loading pit with Little boy.  They were loading from underneath. Second from the left on the top row. This is a film by Harold Agnew.  This is the only film of the bombing of Hiroshima.  Harold always made me promise to apologize for his poor cinematographic technique. If you get sick from watching bouncy movies, I suggest you look away because it's got to get really bouncy.  The photographic plane for Hiroshima took films. They got back to Tinian, and when they developed the film, they ruined it. So there are no pictures of Hiroshima.
If you just noticed there, this is the Enola Gay.  It has an R on the tail today.  As I said before, the last picture we had, it had an arrow on the tail.  This is after they landed. Said it was a big ta do. All the generals were there.  Everybody got a medal. There was a cameraman. Said it was kind of like a Hollywood event.  Harold takes a really great picture of the tarmac here in a minute. But it is the only film available from the actual mission. We like to keep it.  There's the Enola Gay. 

There's Tibbets with General Spatz, who was head of all Army Air Corps, and he was a three-star. After Hiroshima, we got him ready for Fat Man, to get Fat Man ready.  He got loaded in the afternoon. They didn't take off until after midnight, so he had a battery hook up to keep him running, keep him warm. There's Bock’s Car’s crew.  Now, this was... There was a box. If he was up, there was Colonel Sweeney, who was the pilot, who was shown to fly.  This is the Nagasaki bomb.  The movie is much better because Harold Agnew did not take it.  
This is the class photo of the Project Alberta crew.  It was taken after the Nagasaki bombing because photos were not allowed before the bombings.  It is missing about twenty five people because as soon as they dropped the bomb on Hiroshima, about half the people left. Everybody was so sick of being in the war and being on the bottom with no hot water, bad food. So, but this is the whole team, if you look closely, you get a high revolution, that's Roger Warner, and he had the illegal logo on his shirt, on his uniform.  He had complained about, some of these soldiers are out of uniform, because the Los Alamos contingent were actually kind of fake soldiers, because Harold said they would continue. You know, if you get caught, and you're a civilian, you would be executed immediately as a spy. If you're a soldier, they treat you as a prisoner of war, and then starve you, and they execute you, in Japanese.  So, you have a little bit of chance of not being killed immediately.  

Before they left, he said, the military came through, and said, we have all the Los Alamos guys.  You get to pick what you want to do.  Well, Harold was at the end of the row.   They go down the row, and they're picking what position they wanted.  When he got to me, I had two choices.  I could be a lieutenant in the Quartermaster Corps, or a chaplain.  He said, I'm probably not going to pass in the chaplain. So, I better be lieutenant at Quartermaster Corps, which turned out to be very, very handy on Tinian because, along the way, they were working when they first got there. He went over to Tinian in early July. They were getting their stuff set up.  They ran out of screws or nails.  I wondered if I'd go over to the main warehouse, if I could get something.  We're not really supposed to leave our area, but we're going to do it anyway.  He goes over to the main warehouse on Tinian, which is run by the Quartermaster Corps. The guys were doing work.  He goes in and, immediately it scared him. Everybody saluted him because he's a lieutenant, and these are all buck privates in the warehouse.  He goes in and says I need some nails. Yes, sir, yes. They got him nails, or whatever it was he needed.  He said he asked if he need to fill out paper. Oh, no, no, sir. No, you don't need to do any of that.  No, that's fine. We'll cover it. No problem.  Really?  Well, I need some beer. Yes, sir. We'll get some.  Evidently, he must have been the highest-ranking Quartermaster Corps on the entire island.  He said he could go over, and no matter what he asked for, he would get instantly. I thought that Harold would take advantage of this situation.  OK, he did. He took advantage of the situation. He'd go get film for Leon Smith.  He'd go get food. He'd go get whatever they needed.  Those privates were more than happy to get it for him.
After Fat Man, morale got a little higher because basically now the war is over.  Concern about military protocol kind of went down the toilet, he said, because everybody is going home.  All of this, and this is one of the best examples. That is, Bernie Waldman.  Notice he says, please keep tables clear of all beer bottles.  Typically, you would be spotlessly clean. Because there'd be a lieutenant or captain come by.  If you left your stuff out, you would get in trouble.  All of a sudden, no one seemed to care because I think, he said, kind of the attitude was, by the time I'm going to be out of the army before they can court-martial me.  He said, things kind of went downhill after the war. They just kind of walked off and left everything. 

If you do get to go to the Bradbury, be sure to look at the yield measurement display.  These are actual components from Tinian that Harold Agnew brought back. We replicated the blast gauge, which is kind of important. It's the first measurement, the only measure that we have of atomic bombs actually used in combat. That's kind of the summary of Alberta. h.
Louis Alvarez got a Nobel Prize in physics.  In addition to that, he was the one that came up with the concept of how the dinosaurs perished 65 million years ago.  He did all the science and technology behind finding the iridium layer in the soil to find out how they died from the asteroid. So he's very famous.  Louis did a lot. He also was a radar engineer at MIT.  He and Larry Johnson. They both came from MIT Rad Lab. He's also the one who invented the radar to do radar bombing, and the radars to land planes in Berlin during the Berlin Airlift.  Because they flew 24 hours a day, day, night, clouds, rain, and most of those landings were radar landing.  He went to work at the 88-inch cyclotron at Berkeley. It was involved in discovery of a number of elements there as well.  Louis was around doing a lot of stuff.
I'm curious about the radar.  You said the detonation was by radar?  So the radar, that was the plane that would send a radar signal? No.  The bombs had those little antennas. There's four. Each bomb had four radars.  Each radar is tuned to a separate frequency. and they were all tuned by a guy named Dick Budolsky.  He didn't know what frequency he tuned them to so in case he was captured, he couldn't tell.  He tuned them randomly, so the Japanese could have jammed with one, but not all.  They were all in the same band, but they're all different frequencies.  The way it would work is all four radars were looking at the ground for 1,800 feet. When any two radars detected 1,800 feet, they would send a fire signal.  

It wasn't a barometric detonation. It was a radar detonation.  Barometric does not work at all on gravity bombs.  When you're falling at 6, well, Little Boys would fall almost 7 miles an hour. When you're falling that fast, there's nowhere to measure pressure on the bomb. They tried over and over and over, but the error is horrendous.   So the only way you can act, in fact, today, most of all our weapons are radar firing.  Radar firing has always been used.  Unless your bomb has a parachute on it, and it's floating to the ground, they're slow enough, but if it's a free fall, a warhead, everything's radar.

The intention was to detonate it not at the ground, but above the ground at a certain time. Hans Bethe, and you're up to the calculation. Because of the blast, you get more destructive for it if it's off the ground, and then you can calculate all of it.  Then both of these are supposed to be, like, right about 1,800 feet.  That's what they set the radars for. 

So the radar, the radar technology, did the radars have gridded tubes?   The radars are Archie radars.  Every airplane in World War II did not have a tail gunner had an Archie radar. They were tail warning radars.  They chose those because they were being manufactured by, I think it was, like 21 different manufacturers at a rate of about 120 per day for all the other aircraft in the world.   So they were really easy to get.  The radars hadn't been developed too long before that.  They all had basically octal tubes. We fired up several of these. A few years ago, somebody found a big stash of all these Manhattan radars out in California at a surplus place.  They would be shipped to California Institute of Technology. They'd be modified from looking for miles for aircraft, to 1,800 feet, and then they would be shipped to Tinian.  Evidently, they'd have a couple hundred left over which ended up in a surplus.  I remember it's like two 6BQ5s in the output.  It's a low frequency radar. They just used them; they were cleaning up. The RCA made them.  Singer sewing machine made them. If you had the ability to build those in war, you got passed to build these things in war.  I think that's all.
When I worked in England in 80s, Nigel Pickle, who was still alive, he worked with Randall and Booze at AWE, or back then, RWE, where they invented the magnetron radar.  We asked Nigel, why is your name not on the patent? I was across the hall at the time when they got it to work.  

But he does have an interesting story. He lost the world's only working cavity magnetron. They built three, got all three worked.  But as soon as the Brits got something working, they would send it to MIT, to get it out of England  for the occasion, the Germans over ran them, they would destroy everything. He wanted the technology in America. So Nigel got to take it to the air base, which is about 30 miles from Allermax, where they were working on this.  He put his little box, got all packed up, so he'd go check out a car, drive to the air base in southern England.  When he gets to the air base, he doesn't have the magnetron. He goes, uh-oh.  He calls back to Allermax and said, I lost the magnetron. Well, this didn't go over because the other working magnetron had just quit. So this is the only working magnetron on the planet.  He said, they shut down southern England. He said, it wasn't five minutes until there was a truck full of soldiers showing up where he was. Where are you? I'm in the phone box.  You know, he'd chatted wherever he was. He said, they had cornered them. They had sealed off southern England.   They tracked back where he was. Where did you go? So he said, he and the soldiers went back. He said, about halfway back, oh, wait a minute. I forgot. On the way, I stopped and made a call at a phone box.  I said, tell him he'll be late for dinner. So he goes back to the phone box, and there's the magnetron sitting on it.  So this time, he and about two dozen soldiers were back to the air base to make sure he didn't forget it again. Then he gave to the guys on the airplane and delivered it.
This transcription was assisted by TurboScribe.ai.
LAHS NJROTC news
Welcome to LAHS NJROTC March newsletter, we had a great month! For the first week we had our third quarter advancement we are very pleased with the results and the effort the cadets put in. We also attended Santa Fe’s High School annual drill meet.  We had an absolute blast with other schools. This drill meet was extra special because we debuted our unarmed and armed exhibition teams. The cadets worked very hard to show their new routines, we are extremely happy to welcome exhibition to the competition.  After a tiring day we placed with male/ female PT teams, 3rd place female color guard, and individua drill down awards. Currently our teams are preparing for the State drill meet that takes place early April.  Moreover, staff interviews have taken place, we are working towards our 2024-2025 cadet staff. The cadet cadre has been working very hard to make sure they leave with the best leadership possible.  We wish those that applied the best of luck!  During the end of March spring break took place and Topper company traveled to Colorado for an exciting trip. Cadets toured the Air Force Academy, museums, and finally we opened an Avalanche hockey game with a color guard. It was a true honor to perform a color guard for them. We couldn't be prouder of the cadets who went out and represented our program.  Now for next month we have a busy schedule. Change of command and military ball is coming up very quickly. Change of command is mandatory for all cadets. There we will be giving them rank, ribbons, and other awards. We will also be announcing our cadet staff and the change of the CO ceremony. This is a very special night and we can't wait to celebrate it with friends and family. We are also broadcasting the ceremony so anyone can watch it,  Here's the link LAHS ROTC Change of Command 2024 . The day after change of command we have our military ball, we will have a ceremony, dinner, and dancing. We can't wait to end a long year with dinner and dancing with the cadets. That's all for now, thank you for reading!

C/ENS Alana Hinojosa
COMPANION INSTALLED
In the March 19th meeting, Lt Col Dr. Justin Green was installed as a perpetual member.  Dr. Green grew up in Los Alamos, served in the USAF, and returned to Los Alamos to serve as a surgeon.  We welcome Dr. Green to the chapter.
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Chapter Commander LTC Gregg Giesler with newly installed companion Lt Col Dr. Justin Green.  Installing officer was MAJ Robert Hull.
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· COMMANDER IN CHIEF 
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COMING EVENTS 
April



8
Staff Meeting - 

16
Chapter Dinner – Christine Chandler - Legislative Session Review

19
NJROTC Awards Ceremony, Smith Auditorium - 

May



13
Staff Meeting 
21
Chapter Dinner – Alan Carr – 
27
Memorial Day Ceremony – 11:00 am Gauje Pines Cemetery 

June

 

10
Staff Meeting

21
Region XIII Conference Hybrid 9:00 am
18
Chapter Dinner & Elections/Installation of Officers 

28
1994 Chapter chartered

	JOIN MOWW ONLINE:


	MOWW Online is the new online MOWW Community portal.  It is designed for Companions to interact with their membership information.  Please see the article on page 20 of the July-August 2023 issue of the Officer Review [image: image4]here for more information on the new platform, ToucanTech.
 

There are great methods to “connect” with MOWW:
· See your membership information on-screen and make your own edits!
· Make donations via your membership information and see the receipts
· Renew your membership right from your profile page
· Add more information about yourself to the system
 
Soon, we will have more features available to all Companions, such as:
· Email blaster to send newsletters to your chapter members
· Convention registration – attached to your membership!
· No more re-typing of your information
· Chapter and Region “e-headquarters” areas
· Interact with your Chapter or Region electronically!
 
Instructions:
· At the top of the website, please click the blue button [image: image5]MOWW ONLINE.
· If this is your first time accessing (which it should be for most of you), click register.
· On the page that opens, start typing your information.  The system will search for you, and “Find” your profile.  Choose your profile in the dropdown.
· Continue clicking through the registration form.
· Once submitted, The HQ staff will “approve” your access within one business day.  You will receive emails detailing you of the submission and approval.
· Once you get the second message, please feel free to review your profile for accuracy.
· Lastly, TELL YOUR FELLOW COMPANIONS to go register!
 


	 


	

	MOWW Social Media Update

	HQs MOWW is currently managing three Social Media pages and groups on Facebook and LinkedIn.  We are using these platforms to achieve the below goals:
· Improve and enhance communication with chapters  and Companions
· Promote patriotism, love of  the country and public and military service
· Bring public and veteran awareness of MOWW and its mission
· Boost interest in chapter and Companion membership
· Promote outreach programs and engagement with the public
· Recognize national leaders - both youth leaders and adult Companion leaders
We ask that Companions on Facebook and LinkedIn please take the below steps:
1. Join the MOWW National HQs Closed Facebook Group.  This Group is only open to MOWW Companions and Chapter Patriots.  We are using this group primarily to enhance internal communication with our Companions.  Please join the group:
[image: image6]https://www.facebook.com/groups/militaryOrderoftheworldwars
2. Follow the MOWW National HQs Open Facebook page.  This page is being utilized to communicate our message and tell our story to an audience outside the Order.  Please like and follow the page:
[image: image7]https://www.facebook.com/MOWWnational
3. Follow the MOWW National HQs LinkedIn Page.  This page is being utilized to communicate our message and tell our story to an audience outside the Order.  Please like and follow the page:
[image: image8]https://www.linkedin.com/company/the-military-Order-of-the-world-wars-moww
4. Support each other by sharing MOWW content and liking posts.
 

5. Download and follow the MOWW Social Media Playbook at [image: image9]moww.org. 

MOWW VISION

A strong America, dedicated to preserving and advancing American Ideals and Founding Principles.

MOWW MISSION

The Military Order of the World Wars serves our nation and local communities by providing and supporting activities that promote and encourage responsible citizenship, patriotism, youth leadership, military and public service, veteran support, and strong national security.

MOWW STRATEGIC GOALS

Strategic Goal One: Consistently develop and deliver attractive, and high-impact community outreach programs and activities.
Strategic Goal Two:  Expand our impact through alliances and strategic partnerships with organizations that align with our missions.

Strategic Goal Three:  Increase visibility of the Order at the national and local community levels through focused communication, marketing strategies, and local community engagement.

Strategic Goal Four:  Annually grow engaged and sustainable MOWW membership.

Strategic Goal Five:  Increase revenues ensuring adequate financial resources to fulfill the Order’s mission.

Strategic Goal Six:  Increase the number of chapters and strengthen existing chapters.
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